
 

 
 

Notice of meeting of  
 

West & City Centre Area Planning Sub-Committee 
 
To: Councillors Livesley (Chair), Bartlett (Vice-Chair), 

Sue Galloway, Horton, Macdonald, Reid, Simpson-Laing, 
Sunderland and B Watson 
 

Date: Tuesday, 3 April 2007 
 

Time: 12.00 pm 
 

Venue: The Guildhall, York 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
Site visits for this meeting will commence at 11.00 am on Monday 2 

April 2007 at Memorial Gardens. 
 

1. Declarations of Interest   
 

At this point Members are asked to declare any personal or 
prejudicial interests they may have in the business on this agenda. 
 

2. Public Participation   
 

It is at this point in the meeting that members of the public who 
have registered their wish to speak can do so. The deadline for 
registering is by 5pm the working day before the meeting. Members 
of the public can speak on specific planning applications or on 
other agenda items or matters within the remit of the committee. 
  
To register please contact the Democracy Officer for the meeting, 
on the details at the foot of this agenda. 
 

3. Plans List   
 

Members will consider a schedule of reports of the Assistant 
Director (Planning and Sustainable Development), relating to 
planning applications with an outline the proposals and relevant 
policy considerations and the views and advice of consultees and 
officers. 

 



 

 
a) Acomb Branch Library, Front Street, York (07/00320/GRG3)  

(Pages 3 - 10) 
 

Single storey front and side extensions and a wood pellet silo within 
a wooden enclosure.  [Westfield Ward] 
 

b) 33 Main Street, Nether Poppleton, York (07/00359/FUL)  (Pages 
11 - 16) 
 

Single storey, pitched roof, side extension.  [Rural West York Ward]   
 

c) 108 South Bank Avenue, York (06/02379/FUL)  (Pages 17 - 26) 
 

Conversion of a dwelling to 3 flats and a single storey rear 
extension.  [Micklegate Ward] 
 

d) 3 Percy's Lane, York (06/02853/FULM)  (Pages 27 - 50) 
 

Erection of a four storey student accommodation block comprising 
9 studio apartments and 6 apartments, comprising 39 study 
bedrooms and ancillary accommodation, after the demolition of the 
existing building.  [Guildhall Ward] 
 

e) 3 Percy's Lane, York (06/02854/CAC)  (Pages 51 - 56) 
 

Demolition of a building in the Conservation Area.  [Guildhall Ward] 
 

4. Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under 
the  Local Government Act 1972   
 

Democracy Officer 
 
Name: Simon Copley 
Contact Details: 

• Telephone (01904) 551078 

• Email – simon.copley@york.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

For more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democracy Officer responsible for servicing this meeting: 
 

• Registering to speak 

• Business of the meeting 

• Any special arrangements 

• Copies of reports 
 
Contact details are set out above.  

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



WEST AND CITY CENTRE AREA PLANNING SUB COMMITTEE  
 

SITE VISITS 

 

Monday 2 April 2007 
 

The bus will depart from Memorial Gardens at 11.00 
 
TIME 

(Approx) 

 

SITE ITEM 

11.15 Acomb Branch Library, Front Street a 

11.45 108 South Bank Avenue c 

12.15 3 Percy’s Lane d & e 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

          

Agenda AnnexPage 1



Page 2

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Application Reference Number: 07/00320/GRG3  Item No: a 
Page 1 of 6 

COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Committee: West & City Centre Area Ward: Westfield 
Date: 3 April 2007 Parish: No Parish 
 
 
 
Reference: 07/00320/GRG3 
Application at: Acomb Branch Library Front Street York YO24 3BZ  
For: Single storey front and side extensions; wood pellet silo within 

wooden enclosure 
By: Learning  Culture And Children’s Services 
Application Type: Full Application 
Target Date: 17 April 2007 
 
 
1.0  PROPOSAL 
 
1.1 The application is for a single storey front and side extension, and a wood pellet 
silo within a wooden enclosure. 
 
1.2 The proposed extension would be within the Acomb Conservation Area, the main 
building is not. 
 
1.3 An application for a single storey extension and alterations to the existing library 
(05/01921/GRG3) was granted permission under delegated powers, it has not been 
implemented. 
 
1.4 The application comes before committee at the request of Cllr. Simpson-Laing 
and Cllr. Horton. 
 
 
2.0  POLICY CONTEXT 
 
2.1  Development Plan Allocation: 
 
Areas of Archaeological Interest Acomb Area 0007 
 
Air safeguarding Air Field safeguarding 0175 
 
Conservation Area Acomb 0031 
 
City Boundary York City Boundary 0001 
 
DC Area Teams West Area 0004 
 
 
2.2  Policies:  
  
CYGP1 

Agenda Item 3aPage 3



 

Application Reference Number: 07/00320/GRG3  Item No: a 
Page 2 of 6 

Design 
  
CYC1 
Criteria for community facilities 
  
CYHE2 
Development in historic locations 
  
CYHE3 
Conservation Areas 
 
 
3.0  CONSULTATIONS 
 
3.1 PUBLICITY DATES/PERIODS 
 
Neighbour Notification - Expires 15/03/2007 
Site Notice - Expires 28/03/2007 
Press Advert - Expires 21/03/2007 
Internal/External Consultations - Expires 15/03/2007 
 
8 WEEK TARGET DATE  17/04/2007 
 
3.2 INTERNAL CONSULTATIONS 
 
URBAN DESIGN AND CONSERVATION - This frontage of this property is situated 
at the boundary of Acomb Conservation Area. The existing library building is set 
back from the main building line of Front Street, with a large area of lawn and a 
flowerbed in front of the building. The design of the principal elevation of the existing 
single storey building appears be somewhat dated and uninviting. The proposed 
extension will enliven the principal elevation of the building facing Front Street. The 
proposed modern design incorporates a curved aluminium entrance screen, 
horizontal timber boarding and coated aluminium fascia boards and columns. The 
proposals present an opportunity to improve and update the current design and are 
generally acceptable. 
 
The proposed wood pellet silo is situated to the rear of the building and is obscured 
by the existing brick chimney, when viewed from Front Street. The introduction of the 
proposed silo is unlikely to be detrimental to the visual amenity of the conservation 
area in this location and is generally acceptable. 
 
CONSERVATION AREAS ADVISORY PANEL - No objections 
- Silo should be painted an appropriate colour 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION UNIT - Have concerns regarding dust, smoke 
and fumes from the proposed boiler/silo system, adversely affecting the amenity of 
the neighbouring properties. Require further information. 
 
HIGHWAY NETWORK MANAGMENT - No objections 
 

Page 4



 

Application Reference Number: 07/00320/GRG3  Item No: a 
Page 3 of 6 

3.3  EXTERNAL CONSULTATIONS/REPRESENTATIONS 
 
1 LETTER OF OBJECTION 
- Would be clearly visible in the street as it is closer the main building line and would 
be seen in context with the historic properties in Front Street 
- The glazed facade does not harmonise with the local environment 
- The proposed canopy would enhance the incongruity of the design within the 
important architectural environment 
- Suggests examples of how the appearance of the proposed front extension could 
be improved 
 
 
4.0  APPRAISAL 
 
4.1 RELEVANT SITE HISTORY 
 
05/01921/GRG3 - Single storey extension and alterations to existing library - 
Approved 
 
4.2 ADDITIONAL PLANNING POLICY 
 
Planning Policy Guidance 15 'Planning and the Historic Environment' 
 
4.3 KEY ISSUES 
 
1.  Visual impact on the building and the conservation area 
2.  Impact on neighbouring property 
 
4.4 ASSESSMENT 
 
PLANNING POLICY 
 
4.4.1. Policy GP1 'Design' of the City of York Development Control Local Plan 
includes the expectation that development proposals will, inter alia; respect or 
enhance the local environment; be of a density, layout, scale, mass and design that 
is compatible with neighbouring buildings and spaces, ensure residents living nearby 
are not unduly affected by noise, disturbance overlooking, overshadowing or 
dominated by overbearing structures, use materials appropriate to the area; avoid 
the loss of open spaces or other features that contribute to the landscape; 
incorporate appropriate landscaping and retain, enhance or create urban spaces, 
public views, skyline, landmarks and other features that make a significant 
contribution to the character of the area. 
 
4.4.2. Planning Policy Guidance Note 15 'Planning and the Historic Environment' 
(PPG15) sets out the approach to dealing with proposals that affect Listed Buildings 
and Conservation Areas. PPG15 advises that new buildings intended to stand 
alongside Listed Buildings should be 'carefully designed to respect their setting, 
follow fundamental architectural principles of scale, height, massing and alignment, 
and use appropriate materials'. New buildings do not have to be detailed copies of 
their neighbours but should form a harmonious group with them. In making decisions 

Page 5



 

Application Reference Number: 07/00320/GRG3  Item No: a 
Page 4 of 6 

on proposals in Conservation Areas, Planning Authorities have a statutory duty to 
consider the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of 
the Conservation Area. Policy E4 of the North Yorkshire County Structure Plan 
states that areas of special townscape, architectural or historic interest will be 
afforded the strictest protection. Policies HE2 'Development within Historic Locations' 
and HE3 'Conservation Areas' of the City of York Development Control Local Plan 
are also relevant to this proposal. These policies expect proposals to maintain or 
enhance existing urban spaces, views, landmarks and other townscape elements 
and not to have an adverse effect on the character or appearance of the 
Conservation Area.  
 
4.4.3. Policy C1 'Community Facilities' of the City of York Council Development 
Control Local Plan (2005) states that a planning application for social, health, 
community and religious facilities will be granted permission providing that the 
proposed development is of a scale and design appropriate to the character and 
appearance of the locality and it would meet a recognised need. 
 
VISUAL IMPACT ON THE BUILDING AND THE CONSERVATION AREA 
 
4.4.4. The existing building is a 1960s built, low, single storey building with part flat 
and part monopitch roofs set back from the main building line in Front Street. The 
building is sited between a public house to the east and modern residential 
development to the west. To the front and rear of the building are grassed areas with 
car parking to the side  
 
4.4.5. The previous approved application (05/01921/GRG3) was to form a single 
storey extension across the full width of the front of the existing building, projecting 
5.5 metres forward of the main front wall and a small office extension to the south 
west corner of the main building. The front extension had a flat roof and a monopitch 
roof, its maximum height being 4.1 metres.  
 
4.4.6. This application is for a front extension spanning the full width of the elevation, 
it would have a flat roof and would protrude from the front wall by 7.8 metres and be 
3.5 metres in height, it would create a learning room and a cafe/display area. The 
mostly glazed frontage would be broken up by 5 aluminium coated columns, 
aluminium coated fascia boards, a curved aluminium entrance screen and horizontal 
timber boarding to some of the brickwork, with a terrace to the front. The appearance 
of the front extension is considered to be a positive addition to the building which is 
dated, worn and has little significant architectural merit. The modern frontage and it 
being closer to the building line in the street helps to incorporate the building into the 
street scene. It is not considered to impact negatively on the visual amenity of the 
surrounding conservation area. 
 
4.4.7. The proposed side extension is sited at the southeast corner of the building it 
would measure 8.772 metres in depth by 4.58 metres in width and would replace an 
existing enclosed garden area. The flat roofed extension would not project further 
than the existing rear wall. This extension would provide a learning room and would 
provide access to the rear, together with other doors placed in the existing rear 
elevation, to a paved area ramped down to the car park level.  
 

Page 6



 

Application Reference Number: 07/00320/GRG3  Item No: a 
Page 5 of 6 

4.4.8. The 6.25 metre wooden silo would be to the rear of the building with a 2.4 
metre high wooden enclosure measuring 3.976 metres by 3.526 metres. The 
proposed wood pellet silo is situated to the rear of the building and is obscured by 
the existing brick chimney, when viewed from Front Street. The introduction of the 
proposed silo is unlikely to be detrimental to the visual amenity of the conservation 
area in this location and is generally acceptable. The Environmental Protect Unit 
have some concerns regarding potential dust, smoke and fumes from the proposed 
boiler/silo system. The agents submitted further information; no response had been 
received from the Environmental Protection Unit in response to this additional 
information at the time of writing. Further comments received will be given at the 
committee meeting. 
 
IMPACT ON NEIGHBOURING PROPERTY 
 
4.4.9. The proposed extensions are not considered to negatively impact the 
residential amenity of the occupants of the surrounding dwelling. The side/rear 
extension has a high level window in the side elevation but this is not considered to 
cause loss of privacy as this looks onto a public house car park. The Environmental 
Protection Unit have some concerns regarding potential dust, smoke and fumes from 
the proposed boiler/silo system. The agents submitted further information; no 
response had been received from the Environmental Protection Unit in response to 
this additional information at the time of writing. Further comments received will be 
given at the committee meeting. The proposed extensions are not considered to 
impact on the residential amenity of the occupants of the dwellings to the west - 2 
Alexa Court or 40 Front Street as they are not coming significantly nearer these 
dwellings neither are there any windows in the elevation facing these dwellings. The 
proposed silo is the slightly lower than the existing chimney it is not going to be any 
closer to the neighbouring dwellings than the existing building and its appearance is 
not considered to cause undue harm to the residential amenity of the neighbouring 
dwellings.  
 
 
5.0  CONCLUSION 
 
5.1 The proposed extensions are considered to make a positive contribution to the 
visual appearance of the building and the Acomb Conservation Area and would not 
be unduly prominent in the streetscene. Approval is recommended. 
 
 
COMMITTEE TO VISIT  
 
 
6.0  RECOMMENDATION:   Approve under General Regs 3 Council Dev 
 
 
 1 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out only in accordance 

with the following plans:- 
  
 Drawing Number 0393/P03 received 12 February 2007 
 Drawing Number 0393/P04 received 12 February 2007; 

Page 7



 

Application Reference Number: 07/00320/GRG3  Item No: a 
Page 6 of 6 

  
 or any plans or details subsequently agreed in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority as amendment to the approved plans. 
  
 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is 

carried out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
2 TIME2  
  
3 VISQ8  
  
4 ARCH2  
  
 5 Notwithstanding the submitted plans details of the colour of the proposed silo 

shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
prior to the commencement of the development.  The agreed colour should be 
maintained thereafter. 

  
 Reason:  So as to achieve a visually cohesive appearance. 
 
 
7.0  INFORMATIVES: 
Notes to Applicant 
 
 1. REASON FOR APPROVAL 
  
 In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority the proposal, subject to the 
conditions listed above, would not cause undue harm to interests of acknowledged 
importance, with particular reference the residential amenity of the neighbours, the 
visual amenity of the building and the conservation area. As such, the proposal 
complies with Policies GP1, C1, HE2 and HE3 of the City of York Development 
Control Local Plan (2005); national planning guidance contained in Planning Policy 
Guidance 15  "Planning and the Historic Environment". 
  
 
Contact details: 
Author: Victoria Bell Development Control Officer 
Tel No: 01904  551347 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



16

25

37

28

18

38

11

21

LOWFIELDS DRIVE

A
com

b

M
ethodist

C
hurch

1

42

50

1

4

26

25
24

23

1817

C
H

A
N

C
E

R
Y

C
O

U
R

T

48

44
Club

Sou
th

View

Ter
ra

ce

Alexa

Court

40

2

4

4

1

56

9
10

11

48

63

51

Chapel T
err

F
riends

M
eeting

H
ouse

32

42

42a

1

5

83

85

93

95

PO

PH

A
com

b
M

ew
s

A
com

b
P

arish

C
hurch

H
all

2

4

5
to

8

77

73

67

57

24

20

18

El Sub Sta

Vyner

House

Almshouses

45

33

14a

14

16

THE GREEN

Manse

2

12

22

149

1

4

29

83a

32
31

1

79

1 to 52

Orchard

House

S
T

S
T

E
P

H
E

N
S

M
E

W
S

4

1

2

SCALE

Originating Group

DATE

Drawing No.

c Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

9,St.Leonards Place,York,YO1 2ET

Telephone: 01904 613161

Project

Produced from the 1993 Ordnance Survey 1:1250 mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office

DRAWN BY JB

York City Council.LA 1000 20818

1:1250 20/3/2007

Organisation

Library

FRONT STREET

N

S

EW

PLAN 4

Site Plan : Acomb Branch Library Front Street York

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Application Reference Number: 07/00359/FUL  Item No: b 
Page 1 of 3 

COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Committee: West & City Centre Area Ward: Rural West York 
Date: 3 April 2007 Parish: Nether Poppleton Parish 

Council 
 
 
 
Reference: 07/00359/FUL 
Application at: 33 Main Street Nether Poppleton York YO26 6HS  
For: Single storey pitched roof side extension 
By: Mr And Mrs Edwards 
Application Type: Full Application 
Target Date: 24 April 2007 
 
1.0  PROPOSAL 
 
This application seeks permission for the erection of a pitched roof side extension, 
measuring 4.3 metres in length, projecting 3.3 metres from the side elevation and 
with a height of 4.3 metres to the ridge and 2.4 metres to the eaves.  This proposal 
will replace the existing porch style extension currently in place. 
 
This application is to be decided by Committee as the applicant has been employed 
by City of York Council within the last four years. 
 
2.0  POLICY CONTEXT 
 
2.1  Development Plan Allocation: 
 
Conservation Area Nether Poppleton 0019 
 
City Boundary York City Boundary 0001 
 
DC Area Teams West Area 0004 
 
Floodzone 2 Flood Zone 2  
 
Floodzone 3 Flood Zone 3  
 
2.2  Policies:  
  
CYH7 Residential extensions 
  
CYGP1 Design 
 
3.0  CONSULTATIONS 
 
3.1  Internal 
 
Urban Design and Conservation - No comment to make. 

Agenda Item 3bPage 11



 

Application Reference Number: 07/00359/FUL  Item No: b 
Page 2 of 3 

 
3.2  External 
 
Nether Poppleton Parish Council - No comment up to date of writing. 
 
Response to neighbour consultation letters which expired on 20.03.07. - None 
received up to date of writing 
 
Response to site notice (expiry date 26.03.07) - None received up to date of writing 
 
Response to press advertisement (expiry date 28.03.07) - None received up to date 
of writing 
 
4.0  APPRAISAL 
 
4.1  Key Issues 
 
1.  Visual impact on the dwelling;  
2.  Impact on neighbouring properties 
 
4.2  DRAFT LOCAL PLAN POLICY CYH7 states that residential extensions will be 
permitted where (i) the design and materials are sympathetic to the main dwelling 
and the locality (ii) the design and scale are appropriate to the main building (iii) 
there is no adverse effect upon the amenities of neighbours. 
 
4.3  DRAFT LOCAL PLAN POLICY CYGP1 states that development proposals will 
be expected to (i) respect or enhance the local environment, (ii) be of a density, 
layout, scale, mass and design that is compatible with neighbouring buildings, 
spaces and the character of the area using appropriate building materials; (iii) avoid 
the loss of open spaces, important gaps within development, vegetation, water 
features and other features that contribute to the quality of the local environment; (iv) 
retain, enhance and/or create urban spaces, public views, skyline, landmarks and 
other townscape features which make a significant contribution to the character of 
the area, and take opportunities to reveal such features to public view; and (v) 
ensure that residents living nearby are not unduly affected by noise, disturbance, 
overlooking, overshadowing or dominated by overbearing structures.   
 
4.4  Supplementary Planning Guidance 'A Guide to Extensions and Alterations to 
Private Dwelling Houses' March 2001 states that (1.25) side extensions should be 
sympathetically designed to appear subservient to the main house; their appearance 
will be approved if the extension is set back from the main building; and (1.26) that 
side extensions should take account of the new building in relation to the distance 
from neighbouring properties; and that (1.27) pitched roofs are preferable.  
 
4.5  Poppleton Village Design Statement states that proper assessment of the 
character of the surrounding environment  should be taken into account when 
development is proposed with design guidelines to encourage the use of local 
characteristic details; avoid the use of flat felt covered roofing; matching materials for 
brickwork, bonding and roofing; and should support sustainable development 
principles. 

Page 12



 

Application Reference Number: 07/00359/FUL  Item No: b 
Page 3 of 3 

 
ASSESSMENT 
 
4.6  This is a traditional style semi-detached bungalow sited just outside the 
Conservation Area.    The property has previously been extended by the addition of 
a conservatory to the front; dormer and garage extension to the rear; and side porch 
extension.  A good sized garden to the front and courtyard area to the rear provide 
sufficient amenity space. 
 
4.7  The dwelling is well set back from the highway in an elevated position and is 
screened to the front by 2 metre high hedging.  The proposal will also be screened to 
the rear by the existing garage and side, again by high hedging and fencing.  The 
proposal is to be well set back from the front of the dwelling and the footprint  will be 
3.3 square metres larger than the existing, with the same height to the eaves and the 
addition of a pitched roof; it is therefore not considered this proposal will significantly 
impact upon the appearance of the dwelling or surrounding area.  Again due to the 
siting of the proposal and existing boundary treatment there will be no loss of 
amenity to any neighbouring properties. 
 
5.0  CONCLUSION 
 
It is considered that the proposal will not harm the living conditions of nearby 
neighbours or the appearance of the dwelling in the street and as such the proposal 
complies with local plan policy and the relevant Supplementary Planning Guidance. 
 
6.0  RECOMMENDATION:   Approve 
 
1 TIME2  
  
2 VISQ1  
  
3 PLANS1  
  
 
7.0  INFORMATIVES: 
Notes to Applicant 
 
 1. REASON FOR APPROVAL 
   
 In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority the proposal, subject to the 
conditions listed above, would not cause undue harm to interests of acknowledged 
importance, with particular reference to the impact on the residential amenity of 
neighbours or the impact upon the streetscene.  As such the proposal complies with 
Policies H7  and GP1 of the City of York Local Plan Deposit Draft. 
  
 
Contact details: 
Author: Carolyn Howarth Development Control Assistant 
Tel No: 01904 551344 
 

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



1

13

1

41 7

8

14

27

R
IV

E
R

S
ID

E
G

AR
D
EN

S

R
IV

E
R

S
ID

E
W

A
LK

2

8

The
Bungalows E

l S
ub

S
ta

4

17

23

Issues
Saxe-Dane Lodge

2733

SCALE

Originating Group

DATE

Drawing No.

c Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

9,St.Leonards Place,York,YO1 2ET
Telephone: 01904 613161

Project

Produced from the 1993 Ordnance Survey 1:1250 mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office

DRAWN BY JB

York City Council.LA 1000 20818

1:1250 20/3/2007

Organisation

MAIN STREET

N

S

EW

River Ouse

PLAN 3

Site Plan : 33 Main Street Nether Poppleton York

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Application Reference Number: 06/02379/FUL  Item No: c 
Page 1 of 8 

COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Committee: West & City Centre Area Ward: Micklegate 
Date: 3 April 2007 Parish: Micklegate Planning Panel 
 
 
 
Reference: 06/02379/FUL 
Application at: 108 South Bank Avenue York YO23 1DP   
For: Conversion of dwelling to 3 no. flats and single storey rear 

extension 
By: Mr Donald Wilkie 
Application Type: Full Application 
Target Date: 17 April 2007 
 
1.0  PROPOSAL 
 
1.1  This application seeks planning permission for the conversion of 108 South 
Bank Avenue to 3 No. flats and the erection of a single storey extension to the 
basement flat. The property is a 3 storey with basement, midterrace dwelling that 
has currently been used as a shared house for letting purposes. It comprises a 
bedsit in the basement, ground and first floor, and a studio in the former attic space. 
The existing bedsit in the basement has access to the rear yard. 
 
1.2  It is intended that the property would be converted into three separate 
properties. These would be accessed from the front through a communal entrance 
and each property would have separate services. The ground floor basement flat 
would be extended to include the ground floor accommodation as two bedrooms. It is 
proposed to extend the basement with a 2.4m deep and 2.7m wide extension that 
would link to the existing rear store. The basement flat ( 1240 squ. ft ) has access to 
the rear garden area and the access to the lane. A one bedroom flat would be 
formed on the first floor ( 620 squ. ft ) consisting of a kitchen, bathroom, hallway, 
bedroom, lounge. The existing studio flat on the top floor would be similar to its 
present configuration but the existing bathroom would be subdivided to form a 
kitchen and a shower room. 
 
1.3  This application is referred to the West/ Centre Planning Sub-Committee at the 
request of Councillor Tracey Simpson- Laing as the proposal would result in the loss 
of a family house. 
 
2.0  POLICY CONTEXT 
 
2.1  Development Plan Allocation: 
 
City Boundary York City Boundary 0001 
 
DC Area Teams Central Area 0002 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 3cPage 17



 

Application Reference Number: 06/02379/FUL  Item No: c 
Page 2 of 8 

 
2.2  Policies:  
  
CYGP1 
Design 
  
CYH8 
Conversion to flats/HMO/student accom 
  
CYGP4A 
Sustainability 
  
CYT4 
Cycle parking standards 
  
CYT13 
Car park standards in York CC/District C 
  
CYH7 
Residential extensions 
  
CYH4 
Housing devp in existing settlements 
  
CYL1 
Open spaces in new residential devts 
 
 
3.0  CONSULTATIONS 
 
3.1  INTERNAL 
 
HIGHWAY NETWORK MANAGEMENT - No objections 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION UNIT - No objections 
 
LIFELONG LEISURE AND LEARNING- No response at the time of writing and 
Members will be updated at the meeting 
 
 
3.2  EXTERNAL 
 
MICKLEGATE PLANNING PANEL - Object as Policy H8 is being contravened 
 
LOCAL RESIDENTS - Two representations have been received raising the following 
planning issues-  
 
a.  No objection to the proposal provided the rear access does not allow access to 
the flats, given the existing parking problems on Brunswick Street. 
 

Page 18



 

Application Reference Number: 06/02379/FUL  Item No: c 
Page 3 of 8 

b.  Construction work should not impact on the use of the rear alley, positioning of 
skips. 
 
 
4.0  APPRAISAL 
 
4.1  Key Issues 
 
 - Principle of Proposed use 
 - Impact on adjacent residents 
 - Impact on character of the area/ Visual amenity 
-  Highway issues  
 
 Additional planning policy- 
 
Policy H9, North Yorkshire County Structure Plan 
 
Planning Policy Statement 1  " Delivering Sustainable Development " 
 
Planning Policy Statement 3 " Housing " 
 
City of York's "A Guide to extensions and alterations to private dwellinghouses " 
 
 
4.2  The North Yorkshire County Structure Plan (Alteration No.3) was approved in 
November 1995. Policy H9 states that provision will be made for the maintenance 
and, where appropriate, the extension of residential use of property in and around 
town centres and particularly in and around the historic core of the City of York, 
through permitting suitable new development and through the conversion of suitable 
existing property and vacant upper floorspace. This policy is still pertinent. Policy 
GP1 of the City of York Development Control Local Plan- Incorporating the proposed 
4th Set of Changes (April 2005) states that development proposals will be expected, 
amongst other things, to respect or enhance the local environment. Policies T4 and 
T13 require adequate on- site provision for cycle and car parking. Policy H8  relates 
specifically to conversions and states that planning permission will only be granted 
for the conversion of a dwelling to flats....... where the dwelling concerned has a 
minimum of four bedrooms. The Local Plan states that in considering the impact of 
such proposals, attention will be given to the character of the street, the effect on the 
amount of available amenity space, parking requirements, traffic generation and any 
other material planning considerations particular to the case.  
 
4.3  Planning Policy Statement 3 (PPS3), published in November 2006 replaces 
Planning Policy Guidance Note No. 3 and becomes a material consideration in the 
determination of planning application from 1st April 2007.  This new policy amongst 
other things, increases the opportunity for local planning authorities to set important 
areas of policy locally, is more prescriptive in terms of detailing housing mix, and 
retains the emphasis upon developing sustainable brownfield sites, and the need to 
create mixed and inclusive communities which offer a choice of housing and lifestyle 
through the avoidance of social exclusion. Paragraph 31 of the PPS restates the 

Page 19



 

Application Reference Number: 06/02379/FUL  Item No: c 
Page 4 of 8 

principle that was included in PPG3 that the " Conversions of existing housing can 
provide an important source of new housing."     
 
4.4  In principle, the development would comply with Local Plan Policy H4, as the 
housing development lies within the settlement limits of the city and involves the 
conversion of an existing building located within an established residential area in 
relatively close proximity to the centre of York. The dwelling to which the application 
relates has been operating as a shared house with a minimum of 4 bedrooms, and 
thus the proposal would not conflict with Policy H8 of the local plan in terms of the 
property being large enough to convert. This proposal would accord with Policy H9 of 
the North Yorkshire County Structure Plan, which has a general presumption in 
favour of expansion of residential use in and around town centres through the 
conversion of suitable existing property, irrespective of the size of the property 
concerned. To date and until September 2007 when the plan period expires, the 
Structure Plan remains the most relevant formally adopted document in the City of 
York's administrative area and forms the statutory development plan for the area. 
Recent appeal decisions have generally concluded that as the Structure Plan policy 
is adopted and forms part of the statutory Development Plan for the area, and that 
the Local Plan forms part of an emerging document, then greater weight should be 
afforded to Policy H9 of the Structure Plan. 
 
4.5  It is also noted that recent appeal decisions against the refusal of planning 
permission for the conversion of dwellings to flats have been successful, including 
sites at 5 Cemetery Road, 3 Beaconsfield Street, 1 River Street and 16 Abbey 
Street. Planning permission has also been granted by the City Council in 1999 for 
the subdivision of existing dwellings to self-contained flats at 1 Berkeley Terrace and 
6 School Street. The majority of these properties are small terraced dwellings in 
relatively close proximity to the City Centre, of a similar character to the application 
site.   
 
4.6  Planning Policy Statement 3 recognises that the conversion of dwellings can 
provide an important source of additional housing. Clearly, the proposal would 
provide accommodation suited to smaller households (which may not necessarily be 
younger persons) in a convenient and sustainable location close to the City Centre. It 
is considered that the proposal would not conflict with the spirit of Central 
Government advice in PPS 3, and recent appeal decisions have suggested that the 
size of the dwelling should not be a material consideration in determining individual 
applications. It is therefore concluded that the principle of converting this particular 
dwelling into three flats would not be contrary to adopted planning policy and 
guidance. 
 
4.7  The Council has recently commissioned a Housing Needs Assessment Survey 
and the initial results add some credence to the need to retain small family -sized 
properties and to combat an apparent over-supply of flats/ apartments in York. As 
the results have not been transferred into any adopted guidance or policy at local 
level, it is considered that the results at this time carry less weight than statutory 
planning policy and cannot outweigh its principles.      
 
4.8   In terms of possible disturbance of neighbours, the basement and first floor flat 
would have a similar layout to the existing at basement level but would change 

Page 20



 

Application Reference Number: 06/02379/FUL  Item No: c 
Page 5 of 8 

former public rooms to bedrooms on the ground floor. It is unlikely that there would 
be a significant level of noise emanating from this altered layout. Similarly the 
present studio flat on the top floor, and the first floor flat would be unlikely to 
generate an increased level of noise that would affect the neighbours. Whilst there 
are areas where proposed living areas would abut neighbouring bedrooms, recent 
appeal decisions have concluded that it would be unduly cautious to assume that 
such a situation would regularly result in excessive noise nuisance. Sound 
attenuation measures between properties would generally be a matter, which would 
be dealt with under the Building Regulations. The Council's Environmental Protection 
Unit has raised no objections to the proposed conversion into independent units. The 
site of the proposed extension is at basement level and would be screened to the 
neighbours to one side by a part two-storey/ single storey outshot and to the other 
side by a high boundary wall. The nearest affected windows and entrance would be 
on the rear elevation of the adjacent property and these would look down on the 
monopitched roof of the proposed rear extension. As a result, there would be no 
adverse impact from proposed new mass, no overlooking, or any unneighbourly 
impact from the proposed form and siting of the extension.   
 
4.9   The proposed extension to the rear of the dwelling would be barely visible from 
the rear lane and public views. It would be appropriate in scale, design and materials 
and there would no harmful impact on the visual amenity of the area. There would be 
no conflict with Policies GP1 and H7 of the Local Plan that seek to ensure a that the 
design, form and character of new development is appropriate to its area. This is 
endorsed in the Council's supplementary design guide, a "Guide to extensions and 
alterations to private dwellinghouses "  
 
 
4.10  South Bank Avenue has no restrictions on parking and no concerns have been 
raised by the Council's Highway Authority in relation to the impact that the proposed 
use would have on highway safety. The applicant has indicated in a supporting letter 
that it is likely that the building would be occupied by a similar number of residents to 
the previous use as a shared dwelling, and there would be no significant requirement 
for additional parking in the area. This property, with its adjoining property, forms a 
pair of larger properties than the majority of properties on South Bank Avenue. It 
would appear that this neighbouring similarly sized property is a shared house. The 
property would be capable of conversion to self-contained units without 
compromising the dominant small-scale character of the area.       
 
 
4.10  The proposed development would result in 2 No. one-bedroom units and 1 No. 
two bedroomed unit being formed from what was previously a 4 No. bedroomed 
house, with no net increase in the number of bedrooms being created. As the 
Council's draft supplementary guidance on the provision of open space associated 
with new developments is based on the number of bedrooms that would be created 
and there would be no increase in the number of bedrooms as a result of the 
development, it is considered that no commuted payment for this provision would be 
required if Members are minded to approve the application.  
 
 
 

Page 21



 

Application Reference Number: 06/02379/FUL  Item No: c 
Page 6 of 8 

5.0  CONCLUSION 
 
5.1  Clearly, if planning permission is to be refused, it would be necessary to identify 
specific harm which would arise if the development was to proceed. Members will be 
aware that a number of appeals in relation to similar proposals to subdivide existing 
dwellings have recently been allowed. Policy GP1 of the Draft Local Plan requires 
proposals to respect or enhance the local environment. In this particular case, it is 
considered that the proposed extension and the formation of independent units 
would not result in any significant change to the character or appearance of the area. 
Recent appeal decisions have suggested that the size of the dwelling to be 
subdivided should not be the determining issue and that Policy H9 of the Approved 
North Yorkshire Structure Plan, with which there is no obvious conflict, should carry 
more weight than Policy H8 of the Local Plan. There would be no conflict with 
Central Government Guidance in PPS3 relating to the provision of  a mix of housing 
and the need to avoid social exclusion. It is concluded, therefore, that the balance 
weighs in favour of granting of planning permission in this case. 
 
COMMITTEE TO VISIT  
 
 
6.0  RECOMMENDATION:   Approve 
 
 
1 TIME2  
  
 2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out only in accordance 

with the following plans and other submitted details:- 
  
 Originally submitted drawings and details received on 2.11.2007 
 Additional plan and elevation of the rear elevation and extension, received 

20.2.2007 
 Revised 1st floor internal layout, received on 9.3.2007 
  
 or any plans or details subsequently agreed in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority as an amendment to the approved plans. 
  
 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is 

carried out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
3 VISQ1  
  
   
  
 
7.0  INFORMATIVES: 
Notes to Applicant 
 
 1. Demolition and Construction - Informative 
  

Page 22



 

Application Reference Number: 06/02379/FUL  Item No: c 
Page 7 of 8 

 If, as part of the proposed development, the applicant encounters any suspect 
contaminated materials in the ground, the Contaminated Land Officer at the council's 
Environmental Protection Unit should be contacted immediately.  In such cases, the 
applicant will be required to design and implement a remediation scheme to the 
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.  Should City of York Council become 
aware at a later date of suspect contaminated materials which have not been 
reported as described above, the council may consider taking action under Part IIA 
of the Environmental Protection Act 1990. 
  
 The developer's attention is also be drawn to the various requirements for the 
control of noise on construction sites laid down in the Control of Pollution Act 1974.  
In order to ensure that residents are not adversely affected by air pollution and noise, 
the following guidance should be followed, failure to do so could result in formal 
action being taken under the Control of Pollution Act 1974: 
  
  
 1. All demolition and construction works and ancillary operations, including 
deliveries to and despatch from the site shall be confined to the following hours: 
  
  Monday to Friday   08.00 to 18.00 
  Saturday    09.00 to 13.00  
  Not at all on Sundays and Bank Holidays. 
  
 2. The work shall be carried out in such a manner so as to comply with the 
general recommendations of British Standards BS 5228: Part 1: 1997, a code of 
practice for "Noise and Vibration Control on Construction and Open  Sites" and in 
particular Section 10 of Part 1 of the code entitled "Control of noise and vibration". 
  
 3. All plant and machinery to be operated, sited and maintained in order to 
minimise disturbance.  All items of machinery powered by internal combustion 
engines must be properly silenced and/or fitted with effective and well-maintained 
mufflers in accordance with manufacturers instructions. 
  
 4. The best practicable means, as defined by Section 72 of the Control of 
Pollution Act 1974, shall be employed at all times, in order to minimise noise 
emissions. 
  
 5. All reasonable measures shall be employed in order to control and 
minimise dust emissions, including sheeting of vehicles and use of water for dust 
suppression. 
  
 6. There shall be no bonfires on the site. 
 
 2. You are advised that the development may involve building work covered by the 
Party Wall etc Act 1996 that is separate from planning or building regulations control. 
Do not commence work on the development until you comply with the provisions of 
this Act. An explanatory booklet may be obtained from the City of York's Department 
of City Strategy, or alternatively it is available on the Department of Communities 
and Local Government,  www.communities.gov.uk. 
 

Page 23



 

Application Reference Number: 06/02379/FUL  Item No: c 
Page 8 of 8 

 3. REASON FOR APPROVAL 
  
 In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority the proposal, subject to the 
conditions listed above, would not cause undue  
 harm to interests of acknowledged importance, with particular reference the 
residential amenity of the neighbours, the visual amenity of the dwelling and the 
locality, and highway safety. As such, the proposal complies with Policy H9 of the 
North Yorkshire County Structure Plan; Policies  GP1, GP4, H4,  H7, H8, T4,  T13 
and L1c of the City of York Draft  Development Control Local Plan- Incorporating the 
Proposed 4th Set of Changes; national planning guidance contained in Planning 
Policy Statement 1  " Delivering Sustainable Development , No. 3 " Housing "; " and 
supplementary design guidance contained in the City of York's " A Guide to 
extensions and alterations to private dwellinghouses. " 
 
Contact details: 
Author: Fiona Mackay Development Control Officer  (Tues - Fri) 
Tel No: 01904 552407 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 24



94

66

80

81

2

1
7

9
1

79

63

98

1
0
3

H
U

B
E

R
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

71

99

104

118

2
1

1

1
1

2

1
2

59

47

37

86

74

62

50

38

87

75

63

49

37

QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

BRUNSWICK STREET

R
U

B
Y

S
T

R
E

E
T

62

50

38

25

13

14

26

25

13

14

26

Club

ARGYLE STREET

29

12

18

10

8

1

27

32

6

O
V

IN
G

T
O

N
T

E
R

R
A

C
E

14

2
2

8890

Warehouse

49a

SCALE

Originating Group

DATE

Drawing No.

c Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

9,St.Leonards Place,York,YO1 2ET

Telephone: 01904 613161

Project

Produced from the 1993 Ordnance Survey 1:1250 mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office

DRAWN BY JB

York City Council.LA 1000 20818

1:1000 20/3/2007

Organisation
1

4

T
E

R
R

A
C

E

SOUTH BANK AVENUE

N

S

EWSite Plan : 108 South Bank Avenue York

PLAN 2

Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Application Reference Number: 06/02853/FULM  Item No: d 
Page 1 of 22 

COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Committee: West & City Centre Area Ward: Guildhall 
Date: 3 April 2007 Parish: Guildhall Planning Panel 
 
 
 
Reference: 06/02853/FULM 
Application at: 3 Percys Lane York YO1 9TP   
For: Erection of four storey student accommodation block comprising 

9 studio apartments and 6 no. apartments comprising 39 study 
bedrooms and ancillary accommodation after demolition of 
existing building 

By: S Harrison Developments Ltd 
Application Type: Major Full Application (13 weeks) 
Target Date: 12 April 2007 
 
1.0  PROPOSAL 
 
1.1  Some Members may recall that in April 2006, planning permission was granted 
for the erection of two blocks of student accommodation comprising 231 study 
bedrooms on the site of the former Pullman Bus Depot in Navigation Road. It is now 
proposed to erect a further block of student accommodation on the site of a vacant 
single storey building adjacent to the former bus depot, which was previously used 
for motor cycle sales and servicing, effectively forming an extension of the approved 
development. The site has a frontage of approximately 29 metres to Percy`s Lane 
and a depth of approximately 16 metres, and is located immediately to the rear of an 
existing motorcycle dealership fronting onto Walmgate.  
 
1.2  The proposed accommodation would be similar to that within the approved 
development on the adjacent site, consisting of 30 "standard" en-suite study 
bedrooms, arranged in small groups five rooms with associated living and dining 
facilities serving each small group of rooms. Within this accommodation, five 
students would live as a separate household occupying separate "flats". The 
development would also contain 9 "studio" study bedrooms, which are larger than a 
"standard" study bedroom and incorporate more generously proportioned study 
accommodation with integral cooking and en-suite facilities within each room. Thus a 
total of 39 student rooms would be provided within the proposed building. The layout 
and configuration of the proposed building would allow the entire development to 
function as a single entity, and would include a managers office adjacent to the main 
entrance to the site from Hurst`s Yard.   
 
1.3  The area immediately to the west of Navigation Road, within which the site is 
located, is wholly commercial in character, and this is reflected in the design, 
appearance and scale of the buildings, which include the offices of the York and 
County Press. The area to the east of Navigation Road consists of residential 
properties, mostly of post war origin and in block groupings. The existing building 
which it is proposed to demolish is of modern origins, being single storey with a flat 
roof, and is of no particular architectural merit. However, the site is within the Central 

Agenda Item 3dPage 27



 

Application Reference Number: 06/02853/FULM  Item No: d 
Page 2 of 22 

Historic Core conservation area and a separate application for conservation area 
consent for the demolition of this building has also been submitted. 
 
2.0  POLICY CONTEXT 
 
2.1  Development Plan Allocation: 
 
Areas of Archaeological Interest City Centre Area 0006 
 
Conservation Area Central Historic Core 0038 
 
City Boundary York City Boundary 0001 
 
DC Area Teams Central Area 0002 
 
Floodzone 2 Flood Zone 2  
 
Floodzone 3 Flood Zone 3  
 
2.2  Policies:  
  
CYGP1 
Design 
  
H4 
Windfall housing site 
  
CYHE2 
Development in historic locations 
  
CYHE4 
Listed Buildings 
  
CYT4 
Cycle parking standards 
  
CYL1 
Open spaces in new residential devts 
  
CYGP6 
Contaminated land 
 
 
3.0  CONSULTATIONS 
 
INTERNAL 
 
HIGHWAY NETWORK MANAGEMENT  
 

Page 28



 

Application Reference Number: 06/02853/FULM  Item No: d 
Page 3 of 22 

3.1 This development is effectively an annex to the adjacent but larger student 
accommodation block and shares similar features to that development; subsequently 
there are no objections to this proposed development subject to standard condition 
HWAY29 (no windows to open over the public footpath). 
 
ENVIRONMENT, CONSERVATION AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT 
 
Conservation 
 
3.2 The proposals are part of the redevelopment of an urban block within the central 
historic core conservation area behind the historic street of Walmgate. The area is of 
mixed character, having large scale industrial and commercial properties to the north 
west  and  domestic properties, mostly of post-war origin and in block groupings,  to 
the south east. The building would replace a mid-late C20th flat roofed building 
which does not make a positive contribution to the character and appearance of the 
area.  
 
3.3 The building would become part of the student complex which will replace the 
former bus depot. The new building would introduce an intermediate scale between 
the approved student block and the street environment. Its footprint and height would 
introduce enclosure onto the street without being overdominant - the eaves height 
being 9m which is approximately the same as the C19th warehouse at the corner of  
Hurst's Yard and Percy's Lane. The hipped roof would appear less massive in reality. 
The assertive dormer windows would break up the roof.  Different roof forms 
distinguish between the entrance/control area of the building, with its gable, and the 
bulk of the study bedrooms. The building would be glimpsed from Walmgate and the 
materials and design would be compatible with the parent building. 
 
3.4 We note that the main office control area will be brought close to the main 
entrance into the site. This is better for security and management of the scheme.  
 
3.5 Ancillary facilities (laundry, cycle stores and waste measures) have been 
integrated into the building using the change in level on the site. 
 
3.6 The building has large volume in proportion to its external wall area which will aid 
in achieving thermal efficiency, alongside the other measures set out in the 
sustainable design document. 
 
3.7 Proposals would appear to enhance the character and appearance of this part of 
the central historic core conservation area. Conditions are recommended relating to 
the approval of external materials, the submission of large scale architectural details, 
and details of hard and soft landscaping.   
 
Conservation Area Advisory Panel 
 
3.8 The panel had no objection to this proposal but would like to see detailing of the 
soffitt. 
 
City Archaeologist 
 

Page 29



 

Application Reference Number: 06/02853/FULM  Item No: d 
Page 4 of 22 

3.9 The site lies in the central Area of Archaeological Interest.  It consists of the site 
of  the now empty A1 Moto showroom and workshop, adjacent to the former Bus 
Depot site on Navigation Road.  The site lies within the walled area to the south-east 
of the river Foss.  The development of this particular area of York is not well 
understood.  The site occupies an area that would have been at the edge of the Foss 
valley.  Today the area slopes markedly down to the former Bus Depot site;  there is 
a difference of approximately 2m in height between Percy’s Lane (c11m AOD) and 
Wormald’s Cut (c9m AOD). 
 
3.10 An archaeological desk based assessment of this site has been carried out by 
On Site Archaeology.  This suggests that there could be well preserved 
archaeological deposits preserved on this site at the top of the slope into the Foss 
Valley.  Subsequent archaeological observations of a borehole survey have 
demonstrated that there is likely to have been disturbance caused by operations on 
and around this site from the late 19th century onwards.  
 
3.11 I can recommend this application for approval subject to standard condition 
ARCH2 to secure an archaeological watching brief on all groundworks. 
 
Countryside Officer 
 
3.12 The development is unlikely to have any impact on protected species. 
 
Sustainability Officer 
 
3.13 It is welcomed that the applicant has submitted sustainable construction 
information as part of the Design and Access Statement.  This contains the 
acceptance in principle of sustainable design including: 
 
long-life durable buildings,  
reducing pollution during, and the environmental impact of, construction,  
reducing external light pollution,  
energy efficiency in the buildings,  
the use of renewable or recyclable materials (not recycled materials) and;  
low flush toilets and water efficient appliances. 
 
3.14 The statement does offer a commitment to these principles but no information 
as to how they would be carried out and implemented in the development.  All of the 
issues accepted by the applicant would best be expressed as a BREEAM 
assessment for the development.  It is likely that the development will come under 
the new 2006 Building Regulations and this along with the sustainable location of the 
site will go some way to achieving 'very good' BREEAM standard.  This request 
could be applied as a condition if the application were to be recommended for 
approval. 
 
CITY DEVELOPMENT  
 
3.15 The proposed use is considered as use class C3 (Dwellinghouses), with both 
individual students and groups of students effectively living as single households. 
The site was previously used for motor cycle sales and sevicing (A1 Moto), a "sui 

Page 30



 

Application Reference Number: 06/02853/FULM  Item No: d 
Page 5 of 22 

generis" use. The site has no specific land use allocation on the City of York Local 
Plan Proposals Map (April 2004). The site does, however, fall within the City Centre 
Area of Archaeological Importance and partly within the Historic Core Conservation 
Area. The building is not listed but is within close proximity to St Margaret's Church, 
a Grade I listed building. The site adjoins Housing Allocation H1.39, Former Bus 
Depot, Navigation Road (Pullman Bus Depot site), which was subject to a recent 
planning permission for 231 study bedrooms in two blocks of 3 ½ and 6 storeys 
(06/00202/FULM).  
 
3.16 The criteria set out in Policy ED10 (Student Housing) must be addressed and 
an identified need for student accommodation on this site established before support 
can be given to this application. If the student housing need is established, it is 
recommended that occupancy of the site is controlled by condition. If the applicant is 
not willing to accept an occupancy condition on all the units proposed, an affordable 
housing contribution will be required.   
 
3.17 It should be established whether the previous use of the site is regarded as an 
employment use. If the previous use of the site is considered to be an employment 
use, the applicant must clearly demonstrate that there is a sufficient supply of 
employment land to meet both immediate and longer term requirements over the 
plan period in both quantitative and qualitative terms, in accordance with Policy E3b.  
 
3.18 The proposed use intensifies the overall use of the combined sites. The 
proposed use only provides for cycle parking on-site and relies upon the approved 
car parking facilities of the adjoining site to provide for its own needs. Comments 
should be sought from the Highways Department with regard to access and the 
provision of adequate car and cycle parking within the proposed development. 
 
3.19 Part of the proposed site appears to be located within Flood Zone 3, and 
comments should be sought from the Environment Agency regarding potential 
flooding.    
 
3.20 It is recommended that comments are sought from the Council's Archaeologist 
regarding compliance with Policy HE10 (Archaeology). Comments should also be 
sought from the Conservation Architect regarding the proposed demolition and  the 
impact of the development on adjacent listed buildings and historic locations. The 
applicant must also comply with Policy L1c: Provision of New Open Space In 
Development (possibly through entering into a Section 106 agreement towards open 
space provision).  
 
3.21 In conclusion, no policy objection is raised as long as the need for student 
housing is demonstrated adequately in this locality and that the existing site is not 
considered to be an existing employment site. It is also recommended that further 
comments are sought on landscaping, heritage/conservation, architecture and from 
the Highways Department regarding access and parking standards. Comments 
should also be sought from the Environment Agency regarding flooding. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION UNIT (EPU)  
 

Page 31



 

Application Reference Number: 06/02853/FULM  Item No: d 
Page 6 of 22 

3.22 The application has been considered with regard to air quality, contaminated 
land, noise and other amenity issues.  
 
Air Quality 
 
3.23 The proposed development is not included within City of York Council's Air 
Quality Management Area. It is encouraging to see that neither student or visitor car 
parking is proposed for the new site and thus the development is unlikely to generate 
any additional trips over and above that of the previous use. The Environmental 
Protection Unit welcomes the level and nature of the cycling facilities proposed, and 
does not anticipate any air quality grounds on which to recommend refusal of this 
application. 
 
Contaminated Land 
 
3.24 The applicant has submitted a "Phase 1 Environmental Audit" reference 
1144/December 2006. This indicates that previous uses of both the application site 
and the adjacent sites could have an impact on the development and future 
occupiers. This may be dealt with by way of condition to require the applicant to 
investigate further, should permission be granted for this development.  
 
Noise and other amenity issues 
 
3.25 The proposed development site is adjacent to the offices of the York and 
County Press which operates 24 hours a day, and is the predominant noise source 
in the locality. The site is also affected by traffic noise. As such, noise is the only 
issue of concern to the Environmental Protection Unit.  
 
3.26 The applicant has submitted an "Assessment of Internal Ambient Noise Levels" 
reference ECE/NC/5055 dated 13 December 2006. This survey also refers to a 
previous survey carried out for the adjacent site which has been given planning 
consent for a similar development. The survey assessed the noise with reference to 
a number of standards: PPG24; BS4142 and BS8233. The results show that the site 
falls within noise exposure category (NEC) B, which according to PPG24, means 
that noise should be taken into account and where appropriate conditions imposed to 
ensure an adequate level of protection against noise. As such, EPU raise no 
objections regarding the noise climate of the site but would request that conditions 
be attached.  
 
3.27 The survey carried out further assessments in accordance with BS4142 and 
BS8233, these assessments indicate that the noise levels at the site are likely to give 
rise to complaints from the future occupants. As the intended occupants are 
students, it is likely they could be adversely affected whilst trying to study.  
 
3.28 The noise assessment goes on to assess mitigation measures to achieve 
acceptable internal noise levels. The assessment concludes that with the correct 
specification of acoustic glazing, acceptable internal noise levels can be achieved. 
However, this raises the issue of ventilation. Occupants will normally open their 
windows for rapid ventilation, but this would result in unacceptable internal noise 
levels in some parts of the development. To overcome this problem, the developers 

Page 32



 

Application Reference Number: 06/02853/FULM  Item No: d 
Page 7 of 22 

are proposing to fit a ventilation system that will provide continuous background 
ventilation and rapid ventilation, thereby keeping the rooms at a reasonable 
temperature, regulating humidity levels and removing stale air. The ventilation 
scheme will provide an acceptable living environment, but occupants will also be 
able to open their windows if they wish.  
 
3.29 Should permission be granted for this development, I would request that the 
noise insulation and ventilation requirements be addressed by conditions.  
 
3.30 Finally, noise, dust and other disturbance resulting from the development of the 
site could adversely affect neighbouring residents and businesses. In order to 
minimise the impact of the development of the site, appropriate mitigating conditions 
are recommended. 
 
Conditions are recommended relating to the following: 
 
i)   To deal with possible contamination of the site and an appropriate remedial 
strategy; 
ii)  To provide an adequate scheme of mechanical ventilation for all habitable rooms; 
iii) To provide an adequate scheme of noise insulation; 
iv) A restriction on the hours of demolition, construction works and ancillary 
operations; 
v)  Prior approval of the method of any piling operations on the site. 
 
STRUCTURES AND DRAINAGE -   
 
3.31 The development is shown to be in high risk Flood Zone 3. However, it should 
not suffer from river flooding as the topographic survey shows the site to be well 
above the 1 in 100 year flood level. 
 
LIFELONG LEARNING AND LEISURE –  
 
3.32 This type of development is not excluded from the requirement to provide 
recreation open space under Policy L1c of the Draft local Plan, although the policy 
does state that this type of accommodation will not be expected to provide childrens 
play space. A commuted payment should be sought towards the provision of off-site 
open space in lieu of on-site provision.  
 
EXTERNAL 
 
GUILDHALL PLANNING PANEL –  
 
3.33 Whilst the Panel strongly support the proposals, concern is expressed at the 
southeast elevation which appears uncomfortable and visually discordant. 
 
ENVIRONMENT AGENCY –  
 
3.34 The Agency are satisfied with the submitted Flood Risk Assessment and are 
able to withdraw their earlier objection to the planning application. Whilst the Agency 
recognises that ground infiltration "SUDS" (Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems) 

Page 33



 

Application Reference Number: 06/02853/FULM  Item No: d 
Page 8 of 22 

techniques may not be feasible for this site alternative solutions may be appropriate 
such as rain water recycling/harvesting or green roofs. Conditions are recommended 
in relation to potential groundwater contamination, however the previously submitted 
Phase 1 Environmental Audit is adequate to comply with part (a) of the standard 
investigation and remediation condition. Thus no further desk study work needs to be 
undertaken.    
 
POLICE ARCHITECTURAL LIAISON OFFICER – 
 
3.35 No objections. If the security measures already discussed and agreed with the 
developer are incorporated, there is no reason why this development would not 
achieve  "Secure by Design" accreditation. 
 
LOCAL RESIDENTS 
 
Site Notice posted 16/1/2007 - expired 6/2/2007 
Press Notice dated 17/1/2007 - expired 7/2/2007 
Neighbour consultation 30/1/2007- expired 20/2/2007 
 
3.36 Four letters have been received, one of which fully supports the application. 
Another supports the proposal in principle, but expresses concern at the lack of car 
parking. The third letter refers to the demolition of the existing building, and the need 
to ensure that any asbestos is safely removed and that no air pollution is caused. 
One letter of objection has been received, making the following points: 
 
- introducing student accommodation into a residential area is wholly inappropriate, 
particularly where a large proportion of residents are elderly. 
- the antics associated with student life have to be borne in mind, leading to late 
night noise and disturbance. 
- lack of on-site car parking will cause problems for both residents and visitors in the 
area. 
 
 
4.0  APPRAISAL 
 
4.1 Key Issues 
 
- principle of the development 
- impact on character and appearance of the conservation area 
- affordable housing/occupancy 
- impact on surrounding occupiers 
- living conditions of future occupants 
- open space provision 
- parking and highway issues 
- sustainability 
- flood risk 
 
RELEVANT POLICIES 
 
NORTH YORKSHIRE STRUCTURE PLAN 

Page 34



 

Application Reference Number: 06/02853/FULM  Item No: d 
Page 9 of 22 

 
4.2 The site is within the Central Historic Core conservation area. Policy E4 of the 
Approved North Yorkshire Structure Plan states that buildongs and areas of special 
townscape, architectural or historic interest will be afforded the strictest protection. 
 
CITY OF YORK DRAFT LOCAL PLAN 
 
4.3  The application relates to a development of student accommodation on a 
"brownfield" site located within the urban area. The site is occupied by a vacant 
building previously occupied by the "A1 Moto" motorcycle showroom and workshop.  
Policy H4a of the Draft Local Plan states that proposals for residential development 
on land not already allocated on the Proposal Map will be granted planning 
permission where the site is within the urban area and is vacant, derelict or 
underused or it involves infilling, redevelopment or conversion of existing buildings, 
and the site has good accessibility to jobs, shops and services by non-car modes. 
The policy requires new developments to be of an appropriate scale and density to 
surrounding development, and not to have a detrimental impact on existing 
landscape features.  
 
4.4  Policy ED10 relates to the provision of student accommodation, and identifies 
the adjacent Pullman Bus Depot site as one of two allocated sites (Minster 
Engineering being the other) which must provide a minimum of 50% student 
accommodation. In the event, planning permission has been granted for 100% 
student accommodation on the Pullman Bus Depot site. Policy ED10 states that 
planning applications for off campus residential accommodation will need to meet 
certain criteria, i.e. that there is an identified need for the development, there is good 
accessibility by foot, cycle and public transport to the relevant educational institution 
and local facilities, the location and scale of the development is appropriate to its 
immediate surroundings, the development would not be detrimental to the amenity of 
nearby residents and the design and access arrangements would have minimal 
impact on the local area, and car parking will be satisfactorily managed.  
 
4.5  Policy GP1 of the City of York Draft Local Plan states that development 
proposals will be expected to respect or enhance the local environment, and be of a 
density, layout, scale, mass and design that is compatible with neighbouring 
buildings, spaces and the character of the area, using appropriate building materials. 
Proposals should also ensure that residents living nearby are not unduly affected by 
noise, disturbance, overlooking, overshadowing or dominated by overbearing 
structures. Development proposals will also be expected to have regard to the 
principles of sustainable development referred to in Policy GP4a of the Draft Local 
Plan.   
 
4,4  The site is within the Central Historic Core conservation area. Policy HE2 states 
that within or adjoining conservation areas, and in locations which affect the setting 
of listed buildings, development proposals must respect adjacent buildings, open 
spaces, landmarks and settings and have regard to local scale, proportion, detail and 
materials. Proposals will be expected to maintain or enhance existing urban spaces, 
views, landmarks and other townscape elements which contribute to the character or 
appearance of the area. Policy HE4 states that development in the immediate vicinity 

Page 35



 

Application Reference Number: 06/02853/FULM  Item No: d 
Page 10 of 22 

of listed buildings will only be permitted where there is no adverse effect on the 
character, appearance or setting of the building. 
 
4.6  Policy T4 requires all new developments to provide cycle parking in accordance 
with standards set out in Appendix E of the Local Plan.  Policy L1c requires 
developments for all housing sites to make provision for the open space needs of 
future occupiers, in addition to any areas required for landscaping. Policy GP6 
emphasises the importance of addressing the implications of possible contamination 
when development proposals are considered, and the need to incorporate 
appropriate mitigation measures, where appropriate. 
 
PRINCIPLE OF THE DEVELOPMENT 
 
4.7  As a proposed residential development, the principle of the proposal is 
supported by Policy H4a of the Draft Local Plan, in that it relates to the 
redevelopment of an existing vacant building within the urban area. The site also 
occupies a highly sustainable location with good access to shops, services and 
public transport links. The building was previously occupied by a motorcycle 
showroom and associated workshop which is considered to be more akin to a retail 
use than an employment use, thus it it is not considered that Policy E3b of the Draft 
Local Plan (Protection of Existing Employment Sites) is relevant in this case.  
 
4.8  So far as Policy ED10 is concerned, the developer already has an "Agreement 
to Lease" with York St. John University in relation to the accommodation to be 
provided on the adjacent Pullman Bus depot site, and this would be extended to 
include the additional 39 rooms on the application site, should planning permission 
be granted for the proposal. The whole development would, in effect, operate as a 
single entity and would share the same management arrangements. The opportunity 
has been taken to relocate the management office from Block "B" on the adjacent 
site into the proposed building, directly adjacent to the main entrance to the site from 
Hursts Yard. It is considered that this arrangement would increase the level of 
supervision on the whole site by locating the office in a more accessible position at 
the entrance to the development.  
 
4.9  A further factor in support of the proposal is that by providing student 
accommodation in an actively managed environment and in a central, sustainable 
location, the proposal could  reduce the pressure on private housing in established 
residential areas (such as The Groves), where significant numbers of dwellings have 
been purchased by landlords and rented to students, reducing the supply of first time 
buyer/family houses in these areas. For example, in 1998 approximately 57% of 
York St. John`s students and 26% of the University of York were housed within the 
City`s private rented sector.     
 
IMPACT ON CHARACTER AND APPEARANCE OF THE CONSERVATION AREA 
 
4.10  The site is within a designated conservation area (Central historic Core). Within 
such areas, the Council has a statutory duty to consider the desirability of preserving 
or enhancing the character or appearance of the area. The existing building on the 
site is of an unattractive, functional appearance, and does not contribute positively to 
the character or appearance of the conservation area. No objections are raised to 

Page 36



 

Application Reference Number: 06/02853/FULM  Item No: d 
Page 11 of 22 

the demolition of the existing building, which would clearly present an opportunity for 
the enhancement of this part of the conservation area. The proposed development 
would present a three storey elevation to the Percy`s Lane frontage, and would 
incorporate accommodation within the roof space. The new building would take 
advantage of the sloping nature of the site by incorporating a lower ground floor at 
the rear incorporating  cycle parking, refuse storage and laundry facilities.   
 
4.11 The new building would introduce an intermediate scale between the approved 
student block and the existing street environment. Its footprint and height would 
introduce enclosure onto the street without being over dominant, with the eaves 
height being just below that of the C19th warehouse at the corner of  Hurst's Yard 
and Percy's Lane. The assertive dormer windows would break up the massing of the 
roof.  Different roof forms distinguish between the entrance/control area of the 
building, with its gable, and the bulk of the study bedrooms. The building would be 
glimpsed from Walmgate and the materials and design would be compatible with the 
parent building on the adjacent bus depot site. It is considered that the proposals 
would enhance the character and appearance of this part of the central historic core 
conservation area. Conditions are recommended relating to the approval of external 
materials, the submission of large scale architectural details, and details of hard and 
soft landscaping.  
 
4.12  The nearest historic building to the application site is St. Margarets Church, a 
Grade I listed building, which is approximately 60 metres away from the 
southeastern corner of the site. The church is separated from the site by Percy`s 
Lane and also by a number of  commercial uses fronting onto Percy`s Lane and by 
the Early Music Centre. It is considered that the separation distance and the 
presence of intervening commercial buildings and uses, which are in themselves 
likely to present redevelopment opportunities in the future, would result in the setting 
of St. Margarets Church not being adversely affected by the proposal.   
 
AFFORDABLE HOUSING/OCCUPANCY 
 
4.13  The proposal would consist of 9 "studio" rooms and 30 en-suite study 
bedrooms, the latter being arranged in groups of five rooms with shared facilities. 
Thus five students would live together as a single household in each "flat". There are 
6 "flats" (or groups of rooms) in the development, bringing the total number of units 
to 15. The accommodation proposed is capable of being occupied by single 
households, both in terms of the individual studios which are fully self contained, and 
the "flats" which each have their own entrance and facilities designed to be shared 
by four or five people. This could enable the development to be used in the future for 
open market housing without planning control. The number of units proposed (15) 
would normally require a proportion of affordable housing (nominally 50%) to be 
provided as part of the development. 
 
4.14   However, as the proposed accommodation is specifically designed for 
occupation by students, and provided  the occupancy is controlled by condition, it is 
not considered that there is a requirement for affordable housing on this site. Such a 
condition would secure the occupation of all of the accommodation in perpetuity by 
full time students enrolled in further or higher education within the City of York. An 
occupancy condition would also ensure that a fresh application would be required in 

Page 37



 

Application Reference Number: 06/02853/FULM  Item No: d 
Page 12 of 22 

order for the accommodation to be let or sold on an open market basis, at which time 
the issue of an affordable housing contribution could be fully addressed. An identical 
condition was attached to the planning permission for the development of the 
adjacent site in order to achieve similar objectives. 
 
IMPACT ON SURROUNDING OCCUPIERS 
 
4.15  The site is enclosed by a number of commercial uses, including the York and 
County Press headquarters and Wards (catering equipment) warehouse to the west, 
the former Pullman Bus Depot (which is also to be developed for student housing) to 
the north, the car park of an electrical contractors (Herbert Todd & Son) to the east, 
and a motorcycle dealership (Infinity Motorcycles) to the south. There are no 
residential properties in the immediate vicinity of the site, the nearest properties 
being approximately 80 metres away in Navigation Road. Thus it is not considered 
that the proposed building itself would have any direct impact on the amenity or living 
conditions of local residents. Nor is it considered that the commercial activities of 
adjacent businesses would be unduly curtailed. Although the York and County Press 
headquarters is a known noise source with the potential to create nuisance, it is 
considered that conditions can be attached to any planning permission to mitigate 
against any potential noise nuisance and thus minimise the likelihood that complaints 
will be received  from future occupiers of the new accommodation. A similar 
approach was taken with the development on the Pullman Bus Depot to the north, 
which has a similar relationship to the York and County Press premises.  
 
4.16  A common cause of concern with developments of this nature is that it would 
introduce a large number of students with different lifestyle patterns into an 
established residential area. The proposal would add a further 39 student rooms to 
the 231 that have already been approved on the adjacent site, an increase of 
16.88%. In this particular case, it should be borne in mind that the development 
would not be freestanding, but would form an extension of the development for which 
planning permission has already been granted on the adjacent site. In effect, both 
developments would operate as a single entity and would share the same 
management arrangements. A total of 273 properties in the surrounding area have 
been consulted on the application, and only one letter has been received which 
specifically objects to the proposal. It is not considered that the proposal would have 
an unduly harmful impact on adjacent occupiers, particularly bearing in mind that it 
would effectively form an integral part of the managed student accommodation that 
has previously been approved on the adjacent site. 
 
LIVING CONDITIONS OF FUTURE OCCUPANTS 
 
4.17  The proximity of the York Evening Press headquarters to the site creates a 
potential source of noise and nuisance. A significant amount of investigation has 
taken place in order to resolve this issue, and a comprehensive Noise Assessment 
Report has been submitted with the application. This has divided the accommodation 
into "zones" according to the extent it would be affected by the noise source. The 
Environmental Protection Unit are satisfied that with the correct specification of 
acoustic glazing, acceptable internal noise levels can be achieved. In addition, it is 
proposed to fit a mechanical ventilation system that will provide continuous 
background ventilation and rapid ventilation, thereby keeping the rooms at a 

Page 38



 

Application Reference Number: 06/02853/FULM  Item No: d 
Page 13 of 22 

reasonable temperature, regulating humidity levels and removing stale air. The 
ventilation system would provide an acceptable internal living environment, but 
occupants will also be able to open their windows if they so wish. Conditions can be 
attached to the planning permission to ensure that appropriate measures are 
incorporated into the scheme.  
 
OPEN SPACE PROVISION 
 
4.18  The restricted area of the site (approx 400 sq metres) effectively precludes the 
provision of any useable on-site open space. However, Policy L1c of the Draft Local 
Plan does not exclude student accommodation from the need to make provision for 
the open space needs of future occupiers, although the policy does state that this 
type of accommodation will not be expected to provide childrens play space. The 
policy also allows for the payment of a commuted sum towards the provision or 
upgrading of off-site open space in lieu of on-site provision. A small amount of on-
site open space will be provided in association with the student accommodation on 
the adjacent site, and a commuted sum payment of £27,410 has already been made 
towards the provision of off-site open space. By applying the same calculation to the 
present application, based on single occupancy of each of the student rooms, a 
commuted sum payment of £4,992 would be required. This could be secured by the 
applicant entering into an Agreement with the Council under Section 106 of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990.  
 
PARKING AND HIGHWAY ISSUES 
 
4.19  The development would follow the same pattern as that on the adjacent site, 
with no on-site parking being provided, resulting in a largely car free environment. 
Three disabled parking spaces are to be provided in association with the adjacent 
development, and only these vehicles and occasional small service vehicles will be 
permitted to access the site on a general day to day basis.  At the beginning and end 
of each academic term, student vehicles will be allowed into the site for pick-up and 
drop-off functions only. These events will be managed by a regime imposed and 
controlled by site management, as agreed in the approved traffic management plan 
for the site. This requires individual students to co-ordinate an arrival time with the 
York St. John University, enabling a temporary parking permit to be issued for 
parking in or adjacent to the site for a maximum 1 hour period. Conditions could be 
attached to ensure that the new accommodation is subject to the same regime as 
has been agreed in respect of the adjacent development.    
 
4.20  The site has good access to public transport with bus stops being located on 
Walmgate, Lawrence Street, Foss Islands Road, Fawcett Street and The Stonebow, 
and  covered, secure cycle parking would be provided at a rate of 1 space per 2 
occupants, thus encouraging the use of modes of transport other than the private 
car. This is actively encouraged in both Planning Policy Guidance Note 3 and also 
Planning Policy Guidance Note 13 "Transport". York St., John University is within a 
15 minute walk of the application site. Cycling facilities in the form of cycle lanes and 
advanced stop lines are located in the immediate vicinity of the site. The applicant 
has agreed to improve the surface treatment of Hursts Yard (including the provision 
of a marked cycleway), which will form the main pedestrian and vehicular access into 
the site, in association with the development on the Pullman Bus Depot site. Having 

Page 39



 

Application Reference Number: 06/02853/FULM  Item No: d 
Page 14 of 22 

regard to the foregoing, and on the basis that the development would effectively form 
an extension of the previously approved scheme on the adjacent site, no highway 
objections have been raised to the proposal.  
 
SUSTAINABILITY 
 
4.21 A Statement of Sustainable Design Alternatives has been submitted with the 
application, in which the applicant points out that a purpose built student 
development of the type proposed will potentially free up the local housing stock for 
both first time buyers and families, thus improving social sustainability. In addition, 
the site is ideally located to take advantage of sustainable travel, having good 
access to excellent public transport and cycle networks. The variety and proximity of 
local amenities and shops in the local area will encourage pedestrian activity and 
cycle use. Students will also be encouraged to use local public transport by using 
student travel cards. The long term sustainability of the building is enhanced by the 
future adaptability of the accommodation to provide studio apartments, subject to the 
granting of planning permission.  
 
4.22  In terms of building construction the accommodation will be designed to 
achieve the stringent carbon emission parameters to satisfy Part L2 of the 2006 
Building Regulations. Some of the embodied energy within the existing buildings on 
the site will be retained by reusing materials where practical, i.e. the use of crushed 
brick and concrete in sub-structures. The use of a solar hot water system is still 
under review and requires further development. The use of thermal piles as a heat 
source for the development will be subject to a further feasibility study. A number of 
water/energy conservation measures will be incorporated, including a high standard 
of insulation, low flush toilets, spray taps/flow limiters and dual electrical tariffs in 
order to limit peak daytime electrical demands. A condition is recommended 
requiring the further development of the Statement of Sustainable Design 
Alternatives, including the results of further research, feasibility studies, the options 
chosen together with a full written justification.      
 
OTHER  ISSUES 
 
4.23  A Flood Risk Assessment has been submitted with the application, and it has 
been demonstrated (by means of a topographic survey) that the site is not likely to 
be affected by flooding. Thus the Environment Agency have not objected to the 
development on flood risk grounds. In terms of ground contamination, the applicant 
has submitted a "Phase 1 Environmental Audit", which indicates that previous uses 
of both the application site and the adjacent sites could have an impact on the 
development and future occupiers. The Environmental Protection Unit are satisfied 
that this may be dealt with by way of standard conditions requiring the applicant to 
investigate further should planning permission be granted, an approach which has 
been endorsed by the Environment Agency.  
 
4.24  The Council`s Archaeologist raises no objections to the proposal subject to a 
condition requiring an archaeological watching brief on all ground works. The Police 
Architectural Liaison Officer has no comments to make on the application in relation 
to "Designing Out Crime", and has stated that the development would be eligible for 

Page 40



 

Application Reference Number: 06/02853/FULM  Item No: d 
Page 15 of 22 

"Secure by Design" accreditation if security measures discussed and agreed with the 
applicant are incorporated.   
 
5.0  CONCLUSION 
 
5.1  The principle of the proposal is supported by Policy HE4a of the City of York 
Draft Local Plan, which permits residential development on vacant, derelict or 
underused sites within the urban area, or where it involves the redevelopment of 
existing buildings. It is also considered that there is no conflict with Policy ED10, 
particularly bearing in mind that the applicant already has an "Agreement to Lease" 
with York St. John University in relation to the accommodation to be provided on the 
adjacent Pullman Bus depot site, and this would be extended to include the 
additional 39 rooms on the application site, should planning permission be granted. 
The site occupies a sustainable location with good access to public transport and is 
within easy walking distance of a wide range of facilities within the city centre, in 
addition to being within 15 minutes walk of York St. John University. The scheme 
seeks to achieve an integrated design response respectful of surrounding sites and 
conditions, and could act as a catalyst for further regeneration of the area. The 
existing building on the site is vacant and is of no architectural merit, and in 
comparison to the condition of the site at present, it is considered that the 
development overall would have a beneficial impact on the character and 
appearance of the conservation area.  
 
5.2  Provided the occupancy of the development is controlled by condition, it is not 
considered that there is a requirement for affordable housing on this site. An 
occupancy condition would ensure that a fresh application would be required in order 
for the accommodation to be let or sold on an open market basis, at which time the 
issue of an affordable housing contribution could be fully addressed. The site is not 
adjacent to residential properties and thus the proposed development would not  
result in any unacceptable impact so far as overlooking, overshadowing or loss of 
light are concerned.  
 
5.3  The Environmental Protection Unit are satisfied that acceptable living conditions 
can be provided for the occupants through the provision of acoustic glazing and 
mechanical ventilation, with the option that windows can be opened to provide rapid 
ventilation.  A commuted sum of £4,992 would be required towards the provision of 
of-site open space, in accordance with Policy L1c of the Draft Local Plan. The 
proposal would, in effect, form an extension of the student accommodation already 
approved on the adjacent Pullman Bus Depot site, and would benefit from the same 
management arrangements. Thus it is intended that the whole development would 
operate as a single entity. The principle of a "car free" development has already 
been accepted on the adjacent site, and this would be extended to the proposed 
development. The Environment Agency are satisfied that the development is not 
likely to be affected by flooding.  No objections are raised to the proposal by the 
Council`s Archaeologist or by the Police Architectural Liaison Officer. It is considered 
that the proposal is acceptable subject to the imposition of appropriate conditions. 
 
 
COMMITTEE TO VISIT  
 

Page 41



 

Application Reference Number: 06/02853/FULM  Item No: d 
Page 16 of 22 

 
6.0  RECOMMENDATION:   Approve 
 
 
1 TIME2  
  
 2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out only in accordance 

with the following plans, all received on 22 December 2006:- 
  
 Drawing number (D) 201 - Level 0/Site Plan 
 Drawing number (D) 202 - Level 1,2,3 and Roof Plans 
 Drawing number (D) 401 - GA Elevations/Section 
 Drawing number (D) 402 - GAElevations/Section 
  
 or any plans or details subsequently agreed in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority as amendment to the approved plans. 
  
 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is 

carried out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
 3 The development hereby approved shall be occupied in perpetuity by either 

students engaged in full time or part time further or higher education within the 
City of York administrative boundary or who are delegates attending part time 
courses or conferences within the City, the details of which shall be included 
within an occupational management plan to be submitted and agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the occupation of any part of 
the development. 

  
 Reason: In order to comply with Policy ED10 of the City of York Draft Local 

Plan, and in order that the Council can retain control over the future 
occupancy of the development in the event of any part of it being sold or 
rented on the open market. 

 
4 VISQ8  
  
5 VISQ7  
  
 6 Large scale details of the items listed below shall be submitted to and 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
commencement of the development and the works shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details. 

  
 1:20 sections through the elevation at typical positions 
 Windows and doors 
 Window and door openings (i.e. reveals, lintols and cills) 
 Dormers and rooflights 
 Patent glazing or other glazing system (serving the staircase) 
 Columns 
 Roof finial 

Page 42



 

Application Reference Number: 06/02853/FULM  Item No: d 
Page 17 of 22 

 Hard and soft landscaping including planters, steps, railings and external 
lighting 

  
 Reason:  So that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied with these 

details. 
 
 7 Prior to the commencement of the development, and notwithstanding the 

submitted drawings, details of the proposed entrance to the building from 
Percy`s Lane, together with any ancillary design features, shall be submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  

  
 Reason: So that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied with these 

details. 
  
 INFORMATIVE: It is considered that the entrance should be more robust in 

appearance in order to respond to the scale of the building and the 
celebration of "entrance". It is recommended that the details are discussed 
with the Council`s Conservation Architect prior to submission in order to avoid 
abortive work. 

 
8 VISQ4  
  
 9 The arrangements referred to and approved under the requirements of 

conditions 12 and 13 of planning permission 06/00202/FULM, relating to the 
erection of student accommodation on the adjacent site (Traffic Management 
Plan and Green Travel Plan), shall be implemented in their entirety in respect 
of the development hereby approved. 

  
 Reason: In the interests of the safe and free flow of traffic, and to ensure the 

development complies with Central Government advice contained in Planning 
Policy Guidance Note 13 ("Transport") and Policy T13a of the City of York 
Draft Local Plan, which seek to promote sustainable modes of transport and 
restrict reliance on the private car. 

 
10 The building shall not be occupied until the areas shown on the approved 

plans for the parking of cycles have been constructed and laid out in 
accordance with the approved plans, and thereafter such areas shall be 
retained solely for such purposes. 

  
 Reason:  To promote the use of cycles thereby reducing congestion on the 

adjacent roads and in the interests of the amenity of neighbours.  
 
11 All demolition and construction works and ancillary operations, including 

deliveries to and dispatch from the site, shall be  confined to the 
following hours: 

  
     Monday to Friday   08.00 to 18.00 
    Saturday    09.00 to 13.00  
    Not at all on Sundays and Bank Holidays 
  

Page 43



 

Application Reference Number: 06/02853/FULM  Item No: d 
Page 18 of 22 

 Reason: To the protect the amenity of local area. 
 
12 Prior to commencement of the development, the method for any piling 

operations shall be approved in writing by the Local  Planning Authority. All 
piling operations shall be carried out in accordance with this approved 
method. A system for notifying  neighbours of any forthcoming piling 
operations shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority and 
fully implemented during the proposed works. 

  
 Reason: To protect the amenity of the local area. 
 
13 Prior to the occupation of the development, all habitable buildings shall be 

noise insulated in accordance with a scheme to be approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. No alterations to the external walls, facades, 
windows, doors, roof or any openings in the building(s) shall be undertaken 
(including the closing up or removal of openings) without the prior written 
approval of the Local Planning Authority. 

  
 Reason: To protect the amenity of future occupants of the site. 
 
14 A scheme of mechanical ventilation for all habitable rooms that will provide 

background and rapid ventilation, and ensure  adequate temperature control 
in respect of solar gain shall be approved in writing by the local planning 
authority. The approved  scheme shall be fully implemented prior to 
occupation of the use hereby permitted and shall be maintained in proper 
working order thereafter. 

  
 Reason: To protect future occupants from external noise levels by allowing 

them to keep their windows closed whilst maintaining acceptable living 
conditions. 

 
15 Action in respect of contaminated land: 
  
 (i) Prior to the commencement of the development, a site 

investigation shall be undertaken based upon the findings of the previously 
submitted desk study report (FWS Consultants Ltd report ¿Phase 1 
Environmental Audit¿, ref 1144/December 2006).  The investigation shall be 
carried out in accordance with BS10175: Investigation of potentially 
contaminated land: code of practice. The results of the investigation shall be 
submitted to and approved by the local planning authority in writing prior to 
any development commencing on the site.   

  
 (ii) A risk-based remedial strategy shall be developed based on the 

findings of the site investigation. The remedial strategy shall be submitted to 
and approved by the local planning authority in writing. The approved strategy 
shall be fully implemented prior to any development commencing on site. 

  
 Informative: The remedial strategy shall have due regard for UK adopted 

policy on risk assessment and shall be developed in full consultation with the 
appropriate regulator(s).   

Page 44



 

Application Reference Number: 06/02853/FULM  Item No: d 
Page 19 of 22 

  
 (iii) A validation report shall be submitted to and approved by the 

local planning authority, detailing sample locations and  contaminant 
concentrations prior to any development commencing on site. 

  
 (iv) Any contamination detected during site works that has not been 

considered within the remedial strategy shall be reported to the local planning 
authority.  Any remediation for this contamination shall be agreed with the 
local planning authority and fully implemented prior to any further 
development of the site. 

  
 (v) A timetable of proposed remedial works shall be submitted to 

the local planning authority prior to any works being undertaken on the site. 
  
 Reason:  For the protection of future occupants of the site and the wider 

environment. 
  
 Informative / General 
  
 For completeness, the applicant should provide copies of the historical maps 

referred to in section 2.2 of the submitted desk study report. 
  
 Given the identified presence of ground gas on the adjacent site to the north, 

the site investigation referred to above should include monitoring of ground 
gases. 

 
16 Upon completion of the remediation detailed in the remedial strategy a report 

shall be submitted to the local planning authority that provides verification that 
the required works regarding contamination have been carried out in 
accordance with the approved  strategy. Post remediation sampling and 
monitoring results shall be included in the report to demonstrate that the 
required remediation has been fully met. Future monitoring proposals and 
reporting shall also be detailed in the report. 

  
 Reason: To protect Controlled Waters by ensuring that the remediated site 

has been reclaimed to an appropriate standard.  
 
17 ARCH2  
  
18 No window shall be fitted so as to open outwards over the adjacent public 

highway. 
  
 Reason:  To prevent obstruction to other highway users. 
 
19 HWAY31  
  
20 Prior to works starting on site a dilapidation survey of the highways adjoining 

the site shall be jointly undertaken with the Council and the results of which 
shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. 

  

Page 45



 

Application Reference Number: 06/02853/FULM  Item No: d 
Page 20 of 22 

 Reason:   In the interests of the safety and good management of the public 
highway. 

 
21 Prior to the commencement of any works, a detailed method of works 

statement shall be submitted to and agreed in writing with the Local Planning 
Authority. This statement shall include the precautions to be taken to ensure 
the safety of the general public, the method of securing the site, access to the 
site and the route to be taken by vehicles transporting the demolition and 
construction material, and the hours during which this will be permitted. 

  
 Reason: To ensure that the works are carried out in a safe manner and with 

minimum disruption to users of the adjacent public highway. 
 
22 Notwithstanding the information contained on the approved plans, the height 

of the approved development shall not exceed 15.5  metres, as measured 
from existing ground level. Before any works commence on the site, a means 
of identifying the existing ground level on the site shall be agreed in writing, 
and any works required on site to mark that ground level accurately during the 
construction works shall be implemented prior to any disturbance of the 
existing ground level. Any such physical works or marker shall be retained at 
all times during the construction period. 

  
 Reason: To establish existing ground level and therefore to avoid confusion in 

measuring the height of the approved development, and to ensure that the 
approved development does not have an adverse impact on the character of 
the surrounding area. 

 
23 No development shall commence unless and until details of provision for 

public open space facilities or alternative arrangements have been submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The open space 
shall thereafter be provided in accordance with the approved scheme or the 
alternative arrangements agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
and thereafter implemented, prior to first occupation of the development. 

  
 Reason: In order to comply with the provisions of Policy L1c of the City of 

York Draft Local Plan. 
  
 INFORMATIVE: 
 The alternative arrangements referred to in the above condition could be 

satisfied by the completion of a planning obligation made under Section 106 
of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 by those having a legal interest in 
the application site, requiring a financial contribution towards the provision of 
open space. The obligation should provide for a financial contribution 
calculated at £4,992. 

 
24 Prior to the commencement of the development, a supplementary 

sustainability statement shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The statement shall be based on the contents of the 
Sustainable Design Report received by the Local Planning Authority on 22 
December 2006 and shall incorporate the results of further research, 

Page 46



 

Application Reference Number: 06/02853/FULM  Item No: d 
Page 21 of 22 

feasibility studies, the options chosen and a full written justification. Once 
approved, the measures referred to in both the original and supplementary 
statements shall, where applicable, be incorporated into the development in 
their entirety and, where appropriate, shall be thus maintained. 

  
 Reason: In order to secure a sustainable form of development. 
 
 
7.0  INFORMATIVES: 
Notes to Applicant 
 
 1. REASON FOR APPROVAL 
  
 In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority the proposal, subject to the 
conditions listed above, would not cause undue harm to interests of acknowledged 
importance, with particular reference to: 
  
 - principle of the development 
 - impact on character and appearance of the conservation area 
 - affordable housing/occupancy 
 - impact on surrounding occupiers 
 - living conditions of future occupants 
 - open space provision 
 - parking and highway issues 
 - sustainability 
 - flood risk 
  
 As such the proposal complies with Policy E4 of  the North Yorkshire County 
Structure Plan (Alteration No.3 Adopted 1995) and Policies H4a, ED10, GP1, HE2, 
HE4, T4, L1c and GP6 of the City of York Local Plan Deposit Draft. 
 2. Demolition and Construction - Informative 
  
 Attention is drawn to the various requirements for the control of noise on 
construction sites laid down in the Control of Pollution Act 1974.  In order to ensure 
that residents are not adversely affected by air pollution and noise, the following 
guidance should noted: 
  
 1 The work shall be carried out in such a manner so as to comply with 
the general recommendations of British Standards BS 5228: Part 1: 1997, a code of 
practice for "Noise and Vibration Control on Construction and Open  Sites" and in 
particular Section 10 of Part 1 of the code entitled "Control of noise and vibration". 
  
 2 All plant and machinery to be operated, sited and maintained in order 
to minimise disturbance.  All items of machinery powered by internal  combustion 
engines must be properly silenced and/or fitted with effective and well-maintained 
mufflers in accordance with manufacturers instructions. 
  
 3 The best practicable means, as defined by Section 72 of the Control of 
Pollution Act 1974, shall be employed at all times, in order to minimise noise 
emissions. 

Page 47



 

Application Reference Number: 06/02853/FULM  Item No: d 
Page 22 of 22 

  
 4 All reasonable measures shall be employed in order to control and 
minimise dust emissions, including sheeting of vehicles and use of water for dust 
suppression. 
  
 5 Any asbestos containing materials shall be removed by licensed 
contractors to a licensed disposal site. 
  
 6 There shall be no bonfires on the site. 
 
Contact details: 
Author: Simon Glazier Assistant Area Team Leader 
Tel No: 01904 551351 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 48



River Foss

Foss Navigation

El Sub Sta

ROSEMARY PLACE

R
O

S
E

M
A

R
Y

COURT

N
A

V
IG

A
T

IO
N

R
O

A
D

Wormald's Cut

Garage

G
E

O
R

G
E

S
TR

E
E

T

H
U

R
S

T
'S

Y
A

R
D

Garage

PH

M
A

R
G

A
R

E
T

S
TR

E
E

T

P
A

V
E

R
L

A
N

E

Hall

St Margaret's

Church

Building

Bretgate

ST MARGARET'S

TERRACE

4
8

to
5
8

7

9

15

17

1924

23

22

8to
11

7
5

6

1

2 21

23

29

31

116

77

75

73

69
67

65

1a

1

3

5
to

7

17

9

10

2

2a

63
61

57

51

7

3

1
1

9

3
1

68
70

72

74

84
86

88 to 96

98

102

114

1
0
4

to
1
1
4

118

2to12

116

120to130

5 to 17

3

1

8
8

to
9
8

1
0
2 3

3

1
0
0 3

1

1 to 6

7
6

to
8
6

6
4

to
7
4

6
2

6
0

26to291

7

to
118

110to112

101
2

3

4to
13

Robinson Court

59

5

1 to 61

Navigation Wharf

Thistleton
Court 19

to
21

22
to

24

34
to

36

25
to

27

3

Car Park

36
to

4
6

14
16

23

S
ha

nn
on

H
ou

se

1
to

6

7
to

12

Bretgate

Medway House

21
2
0 5

1

136

120

122 126

124

128
130

132

12to
15

113to123

109

95

1

8

111

El

Sub

Sta

PO 16to
19

85to
93Thistleton

Court

1
to

3

4
to

6

7
to

9

13
to

15

St Edmund's House

SCALE

Originating Group

DATE

Drawing No.

c Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

9,St.Leonards Place,York,YO1 2ET

Telephone: 01904 613161

Project

Produced from the 1993 Ordnance Survey 1:1250 mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office

DRAWN BY JB

York City Council.LA 1000 20818

1:1250 20/3/2007

Organisation

N

S

EWSite Plan : 3 Percy's Lane York

PLAN 1

PERCY'S LANE

WALMGATE

Page 49



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Application Reference Number: 06/02854/CAC  Item No: e 
Page 1 of 4 

COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Committee: West & City Centre Area Ward: Guildhall 
Date: 3 April 2007 Parish: Guildhall Planning Panel 
 
 
 
Reference: 06/02854/CAC 
Application at: 3 Percys Lane York YO1 9TP   
For: Demolition of building in the Conservation Area 
By: S Harrison Developments Ltd 
Application Type: Conservation Area Consent 
Target Date: 16 February 2007 
 
1.0  PROPOSAL 
 
1.1  The application relates to the demolition of a single storey mid-late C20th flat 
roof building in association with the redevelopment of the site for student 
accommodation, a proposal which is considered separately on this agenda 
(06/00202/FULM). The buildings are situated within a designated conservation area 
(Central Historic Core), hence separate conservation area consent is required for the 
demolition of the building. 
 
2.0  POLICY CONTEXT 
 
2.1  Development Plan Allocation: 
 
Areas of Archaeological Interest City Centre Area 0006 
 
Conservation Area Central Historic Core 0038 
 
City Boundary York City Boundary 0001 
 
DC Area Teams Central Area 0002 
 
Floodzone 2 Flood Zone 2 CONF 
 
Floodzone 3 Flood Zone 3  
 
2.2  Policies:  
  
CYHE5 
Demolition of Listed Buildings and Buildings in Conservation Areas 
 
 
3.0  CONSULTATIONS 
 
3.1  INTERNAL 
 
ENVIRONMENT, CONSERVATION AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT 

Agenda Item 3ePage 51



 

Application Reference Number: 06/02854/CAC  Item No: e 
Page 2 of 4 

 
Conservation 
 
The building is situated within the central historic core conservation area, off 
Walmgate and close to St Margaret's church. It is a C20th flat roofed brick structure 
which is being used as a motor cycle sales room and workshop. The structure is one 
of a several C20th century utilitarian buildings which form a cluster adjacent to 
Percy’s Lane. The building does not contribute to the character and quality of the 
industrial buildings nearby, nor does it reinforce the urban grain and architecture of 
new and historic domestic structures in the area. The building does not make a 
positive contribution to the character and appearance of the conservation area. 
Therefore there is no presumption in favour of its retention. 
 
The immediate area is changing in character with the demise of the former bus 
garage, the conversion of the church to the National Centre for Early Music, and 
more recently approval of a large office development and a scheme for student 
accommodation. 
 
Redevelopment proposals must be judged on their own merits. The building sits on 
its own and I see no reason to tie this particular demolition to the approval of a 
successful scheme of redevelopment for the site. 
 
Conservation Area Advisory Panel 
 
No objections 
 
3.2  EXTERNAL 
 
GUILDHALL PLANNING PANEL - No objections subject to the demolition 
commencing as part of a consent for the development of an approved scheme. 
 
ADJACENT OCCUPIERS - No replies 
 
4.0  APPRAISAL 
 
4.1  Key Issues 
 
- architectural quality of building 
- impact on character and appearance of the conservation area 
 
4.2  The application relates to the demolition of a single storey mid-late C20th flat 
roof build, the footprint of which occupies almost the whole of the site.  Policy E4 of 
the Approved North Yorkshire Structure Plan states that buildings and areas of 
special townscape, architectural or historic interest will be afforded the strictest 
protection. Policy HE5 of the City of York Deposit Draft Local Plan states that 
conservation area consent will not be granted for the demolition of buildings which 
positively contribute to the character or appearance of conservation areas. Where 
exceptionally demolition or partial demolition is permitted, Policy HE5 requires that 
no demolition takes place until a building contract for the carrying out of works of 

Page 52



 

Application Reference Number: 06/02854/CAC  Item No: e 
Page 3 of 4 

redevelopment has been made, and planning permission for those works has been 
granted.  
 
4.3  Central Government advice in relation to demolition within conservation areas is 
contained within Planning Policy Guidance Note 15 (PPG15) - "Planning and the 
Historic Environment". In exercising conservation area controls, Local Planning 
Authorities are required to pay special attention to the desirability of preserving or 
enhancing the character or appearance of the area in question. Account should be 
taken of the part played in the architectural or historic interest of the area by the 
building for which demolition is proposed, and the wider effects of demolition on the 
surroundings and on the conservation area as a whole. 
 
4.3  PPG15 states that the general presumption should be in favour of retaining 
buildings which make a positive contribution to the character or appearance of a 
conservation area. The Secretary of State expects that proposals to demolish such 
buildings should be considered against the same broad criteria to demolish listed 
buildings. Where a building makes little or no contribution, full information about what 
is proposed for the site after demolition should be provided. Consent for demolition 
should not be given unless there are acceptable and detailed plans for any 
redevelopment. It has been held that the decision maker is entitled to consider the 
merits of any proposed development in determining whether consent should be 
given for the demolition of an unlisted building in a conservation area.  
 
4.4  The existing building on the site is an unattractive single storey structure of brick 
construction with a flat roof. The building is of no architectural merit and has few, if 
any, redeeming features. The structure is one of a several C20th century utilitarian 
buildings which form a cluster adjacent to Percy’s Lane. The building does not 
contribute to the character and quality of the industrial buildings nearby, nor does it 
reinforce the urban grain and architecture of new and historic domestic structures in 
the area. The building is not particularly characteristic of the location and is not 
considered to contribute positively to the character or appearance of the 
conservation area.  
 
4.5  In this particular case, it is considered that the proposed redevelopment 
proposals for the site, as set out in the previous item on the agenda, are acceptable 
and no objections are raised, therefore, to the demolition of the existing building. 
However, it is not considered that the imposition of the standard condition requiring a 
contract for the redevelopment of the site to be made prior to the demolition of the 
existing building is  justified in this instance, given its freestanding nature and poor 
architectural quality. 
 
5.0  CONCLUSION 
 
5.1 Bearing in mind the generally poor architectural quality of the building that it is 
proposed to demolish, it is not considered that the character or appearance of the 
conservation area would be adversely affected by the proposal. The redevelopment 
proposals for the site are considered to be acceptable. As such, the granting of 
conservation area consent is considered to be acceptable, and not in conflict with 
Policy E4 of the Approved North Yorkshire Structure Plan or Policy HE5 of the Draft 
Local Plan. 

Page 53



 

Application Reference Number: 06/02854/CAC  Item No: e 
Page 4 of 4 

 
COMMITTEE TO VISIT  
 
 
6.0  RECOMMENDATION:   Approve 
 
 
1 TIMEL2  
  
 
7.0  INFORMATIVES: 
Notes to Applicant 
 
 1. REASON FOR APPROVAL 
  
 In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority the proposal, subject to the 
conditions listed above, would not cause undue harm to interests of acknowledged 
importance, with particular reference to: 
  
 - architectural quality of building 
 - impact on character and appearance of the conservation area 
  
 As such the proposal complies with Policy E4 of  the North Yorkshire County 
Structure Plan (Alteration No.3 Adopted 1995) and Policy HE5 of the City of York 
Local Plan Deposit Draft. 
 
Contact details: 
Author: Simon Glazier Assistant Area Team Leader 
Tel No: 01904 551351 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 54



River Foss

Foss Navigation

El Sub Sta

ROSEMARY PLACE

R
O

S
E

M
A

R
Y

COURT

N
A

V
IG

A
T

IO
N

R
O

A
D

Wormald's Cut

Garage

G
E

O
R

G
E

S
TR

E
E

T

H
U

R
S

T
'S

Y
A

R
D

Garage

PH

M
A

R
G

A
R

E
T

S
TR

E
E

T

P
A

V
E

R
L

A
N

E

Hall

St Margaret's

Church

Building

Bretgate

ST MARGARET'S

TERRACE

4
8

to
5
8

7

9

15

17

1924

23

22

8to
11

7
5

6

1

2 21

23

29

31

116

77

75

73

69
67

65

1a

1

3

5
to

7

17

9

10

2

2a

63
61

57

51

7

3

1
1

9

3
1

68
70

72

74

84
86

88 to 96

98

102

114

1
0
4

to
1
1
4

118

2to12

116

120to130

5 to 17

3

1

8
8

to
9
8

1
0
2 3

3

1
0
0 3

1

1 to 6

7
6

to
8
6

6
4

to
7
4

6
2

6
0

26to291

7

to
118

110to112

101
2

3

4to
13

Robinson Court

59

5

1 to 61

Navigation Wharf

Thistleton
Court 19

to
21

22
to

24

34
to

36

25
to

27

3

Car Park

36
to

4
6

14
16

23

S
ha

nn
on

H
ou

se

1
to

6

7
to

12

Bretgate

Medway House

21
2
0 5

1

136

120

122 126

124

128
130

132

12to
15

113to123

109

95

1

8

111

El

Sub

Sta

PO 16to
19

85to
93Thistleton

Court

1
to

3

4
to

6

7
to

9

13
to

15

St Edmund's House

SCALE

Originating Group

DATE

Drawing No.

c Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

9,St.Leonards Place,York,YO1 2ET

Telephone: 01904 613161

Project

Produced from the 1993 Ordnance Survey 1:1250 mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office

DRAWN BY JB

York City Council.LA 1000 20818

1:1250 20/3/2007

Organisation

N

S

EWSite Plan : 3 Percy's Lane York

PERCY'S LANE

WALMGATE

PLAN 1A

Page 55



Page 56

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	
	3a Acomb Branch Library, Front Street, York (07/00320/GRG3)
	Plan

	3b 33 Main Street, Nether Poppleton, York (07/00359/FUL)
	Plan

	3c 108 South Bank Avenue, York (06/02379/FUL)
	Plan

	3d 3 Percy's Lane, York (06/02853/FULM)
	Plan

	3e 3 Percy's Lane, York (06/02854/CAC)
	Plan


